
City of Gainesville Work Session Minutes  City Manager’s Conference Room 
Thursday, March 10, 2011, 9:00 AM Page 1 of 4 
 

   

COUNCIL PRESENT: Bruner, Dunagan, Wangemann, Hamrick, Figueras 
STAFF PRESENT: Padgett, Palmour, Jordan 
STAFF ABSENT: Sheppard 
 
 
Mayor Bruner called the meeting to order. 
 
 
BUDGET PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Communication & Tourism 
Communications and Tourism Director Catiel Felts distributed the updated Citizen’s Guide to 
Government as she defined the functions of the department, i.e, public information, TV18, 
tourism and trade. She commented on the mission and goals of the department. She indicated 
several projects were recently completed or in progress and specifically mentioned the visitor’s 
guide and the website. Mrs. Felts stated the Tourism Office started anew and had spent the last 
year identifying groups that would come to Gainesville. She closed by sharing cost saving 
measures and reviewing capital projects. 
 
Council Member Wangemann confirmed the department was working with the Convention and 
Visitor’s Bureau. 
 
Council Member Hamrick stated he had seen some information about performances at the 
Georgia Mountains Center and was disappointed to learn activities at the center have declined 
over the last few years.  
 
Council Member Hamrick suggested offering a restaurant at Holly Park. City Manager Kip 
Padgett stated he would pass this on to Parks and Recreation. 
 
Community Development Department 
Director of Community Development Rusty Ligon commented on the responsibilities of the 
department and its mission statement. He showed the organizational chart noting the staff 
reduction from 22 to 15 people. He reviewed the accomplishments for FY2011. He shared his 
theory that developers are not rezoning until the tenant signs the necessary paperwork which 
was the first step before the economy changed. He also commented on new 
developments/businesses in the permitting process. Mr. Ligon closed by sharing the goals for 
FY2012 and reviewing capital needs. 
 
Mayor Bruner confirmed staff was working to identify other industrial park sites. 
 
Council Member Hamrick commented on the recent Georgia Trend Magazine’s assessment of 
Hall County, i.e., ranking sixth in regards to economic hubs within the state. 
 
Administrative Services 
Administrative Services Director Melody Marlowe stated the department was recently 
reorganized and the new organizational structure has worked well. She commented on the 
accomplishments over the last year, the FY2012 goals/objectives and the capital improvement 
plan. She closed by discussing cost savings measures. 
 
 



City of Gainesville Work Session Minutes  City Manager’s Conference Room 
Thursday, March 10, 2011, 9:00 AM Page 2 of 4 
 

   

PUBLIC UTILITIES ISSUES: 
 
Project Resolution: FY2011 Water Treatment and Water Reclamation Facilities 
Maintenance     
Civil Engineer Matt Tarver stated this project will address maintenance concerns at three 
facilities. The department received proposals noting the lowest was from MOPAC. The proposal 
was evaluated and the department recommends awarding the project to MOPAC. The proposed 
resolution authorized expenditures not exceeding $498,550 from the Public Utilities Department 
capital improvement plan.  
 
Council Member Hamrick asked about plastic versus steel plates based upon his recollection of 
problems in the past. Mr. Tarver stated plastic products have advanced so much that the steel 
plates are no longer available in the United States. He also stated refurbishment had been 
considered during the evaluation process. 
 
 Placed on the March 15, 2011 Council Meeting Consent Agenda 
 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ISSUES: 
 
Business Resolution: Transmittal of the Annual Update to the Capital Improvements 
Element (CIE) & Short Term Work Program of the City of Gainesville’s Comprehensive 
Plan 
Special Projects Manager Jessica Tullar provided an update on the CIE noting they are still 
collecting funds and the funds need to be spent by the end of the fifth year. A public hearing 
was required to transmit the document to the Georgia Mountains Regional Commission. 
 
 Placed on the March 15, 2011 Council Meeting Agenda 
 
 
CITY MANAGER’S ISSUES: 
 
Downtown Request for Proposals Meeting 
City Manager Kip Padgett stated there was an excellent turnout for the meeting and staff did a 
great job. The proposals were due on May 9th. 
 
NV Lounge Alcoholic Beverage License Appeal Hearing 
City Manager Kip Padgett requested an appeal hearing be set for March 31st to address the 
revocation of NV Lounge’s license.  
 
  There was consensus to proceed as requested. 
 
 
COUNCIL ISSUES: 
 
Council Member Wangemann 
1. Reported he was receiving questions from citizens about Red Rabbit services. Is the service 

paying for itself? If not, is it feasible to continue the service considering the economy and the 
cost of fuel? How many are using the service? Is the trend in an upward direction? When 
was the last time we evaluated the efficiency and effectiveness of the routes?  

2. Reported a request from Al Gainey for the Council to appear on his radio show. 



City of Gainesville Work Session Minutes  City Manager’s Conference Room 
Thursday, March 10, 2011, 9:00 AM Page 3 of 4 
 

   

3. Commented on break-ins/thefts on West Avenue noting he was always looking for a 
solution. He suggested partnering with the school system to highlight values as a preventive 
measure. 

 
Council Member Dunagan 
Commented on the recent Chattahoochee Golf Course Advisory Committee Meeting indicating 
they were 1613 rounds ahead compared to this time last year. 
 
Mayor Bruner 
1. Received a thank you letter regarding the City’s attendance at Patriot’s Call. 
2. Testified before the General Assembly regarding the palm broker’s bill. 
 
Council Member Hamrick 
Restated his request for a restaurant in Holly Park indicating the time has come to address this. 
 
Council Member Figueras 
1. Jim Hardman reported people walking along Brown’s Bridge Road were experiencing 

accessing restaurants. Council Member Dunagan recalled staff requesting that restaurants 
pool together to address the sidewalk issue. Public Works would be asked to look at this 
issue. 

2. Received responses regarding the report for childhood obesity. 
3. Reported a pothole on Jesse Jewell near the old Shoney’s Restaurant. 
4. Reported attendance at the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System (GMEBS) 

meeting. 
5. Commented on an upcoming Community Cleanup effort. 
6. Reported the One Community Meeting would address boards/committees. 
7. Reported the Adult Learning Center’s need to expand into Oakwood. The City may be asked 

to send a letter to the Federal Government justifying the expansion. 
 
 
RECESS:  10:48 AM 
RECONVENE: 10:52 AM 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
City Manager Kip Padgett requested an Executive Session to discuss potential litigation and 
personnel matters. 
 
 Motion to close the meeting to enter an Executive Session to discuss potential 

litigation and personnel matters at 10:52 AM. 
 
  Motion made by Council Member Dunagan 
  Motion seconded by Council Member Wangemann 
  Council Members voting in favor of the motion were Bruner, Dunagan, 

Wangemann, Hamrick and Figueras. 
 
 
COUNCIL PRESENT: Bruner, Dunagan, Wangemann, Hamrick, Figueras 
STAFF PRESENT: Padgett, Palmour, Jordan 
STAFF ABSENT: Sheppard 



City of Gainesville Work Session Minutes  City Manager’s Conference Room 
Thursday, March 10, 2011, 9:00 AM Page 4 of 4 
 

   

 Motion to close the Executive Session and to continue the meeting at 11:38 AM. 
 
  Motion made by Council Member Dunagan 
  Motion seconded by Council Member Wangemann 
  Council Members voting in favor of the motion were Bruner, Dunagan, 

Wangemann, Hamrick and Figueras. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
First Friday Event 
There was a brief discussion regarding possibility of offering First Friday events in the downtown 
area. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT:     11:45 AM 
 
/dj 


